WIWYNN CORPORATION
2022 ANNUAL GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
MINUTES

(Translation)

The translation is intended for reference only and nothing else. The Chinese text of the minutes of 2022 Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting shall govern any and all matters related to the interpretation of the subject matter stated herein.

Meeting Time © 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, May 31, 2022

Place : 2F.,No. 94, Sec. 1, Xintai 5th Rd., Xizhi Dist.,New Taipei City, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
(Conference Room on the 2nd Floor, Building C, Oriental Science Park)

Meeting type : Hybrid shareholders' meeting
(physical shareholders meeting supported by video conferencing)

E-Meeting Platform : “Shareholders meeting e-Voting Platform — e-meeting platform” by
Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation (TDCC)
[ website: http://www.stockvote.com.tw )

Total outstanding shares of Wiwynn Corporation : 174,840,791 shares
Total shares represented by shareholders present in person or by proxy : 154,708,911 shares
Percentage of shares held by shareholders present in person or by proxy : 88.48%

Directors present : Simon Lin / Chairman, Emily Hong / Vice Chairman, Sunlai Chang / Director,
Frank Lin / Director,, Simon Dzeng / Independent Director, Clarles Kau /
Independent Director, Cathy Han / Independent Director, Victor Cheng /
Independent Director

In attendance : Harry Chen / CFO
Chairman  Simon Lin, Chairman of the Board of Directors
Recorder - Harry Chen

The aggregate shareholding of the shareholders present in person or by proxy constituted a
quorum.

The Chairman called the meeting to order.
Chairman's Address (omitted)
I. Report Items

1.Report the business of 2021. (Please refer to Attachment 1)
2.Audit Committee’s review report. (Please refer to Attachment 2)
3.Report 2021 employees’ profit sharing and directors’ compensation.

Explanation:

(1) According to Article 21 of the “Articles of Incorporation”: If the Company has profit as a result
of the yearly accounting closing, (profit means the profit before tax, excluding the amounts of
employees’ and directors’ compensation) such profit will be distributed in accordance with the
following, once the Company’s accumulated losses shall have been covered.

A. No less than five percent (5%) of profit as employees’ compensation. The employees’
compensation may be distributed in the form of shares or in cash. The qualification
requirements of employees, including the employees from the Company’s controlling
companies or subsidiaries, which are entitled to receive compensation, shall be determined
by the Board of Directors;



B. No more than one percent (1%) of profit as the compensation in cash to the directors.

(2) The Company’s third-term seventh Compensation Committee Meeting and the second Board
Meeting of 2022 approved the proposal of 2021 employees’ profit sharing and directors’
compensation. The employees’ profit sharing and Board Directors’ compensation are to be
distributed in accordance with the “Articles of Incorporation.”

A. The total amount of employees’ 2021 profit sharing is NT$574,000,000, distributed in cash.
B. The total amount of Board Directors’ 2021 compensation is NT$27,450,000, distributed in

cash.

4.Report the status of domestic unsecured corporate bonds.
Explanation: In order to strength the operating capital, the Company issued domestic unsecured
ordinary corporate bonds. Details as follows:

Tranche / Category Wiwynn Corporation 1% Unsecured Corporate Bond issue in 2021
Date of Approval 2021.07.28

Date of Issuance 2021.08.06

Date of Expiration 2026.08.06

Total issuance Amount NTD 4.45 billion

Face value NTD 1 million

Issue price 100% of par value

Issuance Period

5 years ; From 2021.08.06 to 2026.08.06

Coupon rate

Fixed rate at 0.63%

Way of Reimbursement

50% respectively for the 4™ and 5™ year.

Interest Payment

The interest is calculated with simple interest based on the coupon
rate and distributed annually.

Trustees

Bank SinoPac

Debt Service Agency

Bank SinoPac Taipei Branch

Exercise of the Issuance

Fully exercised in Q3 2021

5.Report the amendments to the

“Codes of Ethical Conduct.”

Explanation: In order to meet operational needs, the Company approved the amendments of the
“Codes of Ethical Conduct” at the first Board Meeting of 2022. Please refer to Attachment 3 for the
before and after revision chart and Attachment 4 for the amended version.

II. Ratification Items and Discussion Items

Item 1

Proposal : Ratification of the Business Report and Financial Statements of 2021.
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation :

1. The Company’s business report and financial statements for 2021 (including Balance Sheets,
Statements of Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash
Flows), which have all been adopted by the Board of Directors with resolution and examined by
the Audit Committee, and are hereby submitted for ratification. (Please refer to Attachment 1).

2. Submission for ratification.

Resolution

Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-

voting and e-meeting)

% of the total
Voting Results represented share
present
Approval votes : 144,886,072 (including 134,573,893 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 93.65 %
Disapproval votes : 9,014 (including 9,014 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Abstention votes/ No votes : 9,813,825 (including 9,792,230 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 6.35%

RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.
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Item 2
Proposal : Ratification of the proposal for distribution of 2021 profits.
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation :

1. The unappropriated retained earnings at the beginning of the year is NT$6,122,872,321 in 2021.
After adding up the 2021 net income of NT$8,648,011,824, then deducting the legal reserve of
NT$864,413,342 and special reserve retained for the net debit balance of other equity interest in
this year of NT$193,125,853 and remeasurements of defined benefit obligation of NT$3,878,400,
therefore the total amount of retained earnings available for distribution is NT$13,709,466,550. It
is proposed to distribute NT$4,371,019,775 as the dividends to the shareholders in cash. (NT$25
per share).

2. After the adoption of the resolution at the Shareholders’ Meeting, it is proposed the Shareholders’
Meeting to authorize the Chairman with the power to set the ex-dividend date and other relevant
matters.

3. Before the ex-dividend date, due to the amendment of laws or regulations, or the change to the
Company’s common shares (i.e. repurchasing the Company’s shares for transfer or cancellation,
capital increase by cash, the issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of
GDR, unsecured convertible bonds converting into common shares etc.), which results in changes
in shareholders’ allotment of cash dividend, the Chairman is to be authorized to adjust accordingly.

4. 2021 Statements of Profit Appropriation as follows:

5. Submission for ratification.
Wiwynn Corporation
Profit Appropriation Statement for 2021
Unit : NTD$

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at beginning of the year 6,122,872,321
Plus :

Net Income of 2021 8,648,011,824
Less :

Legal Reserve (864,413,342)

.Spec.ial Reserve retained for the net debit balance of other equity interest (193,125,853)

in this year

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (3,878,400)
Retained Earnings Available for Distribution 13,709,466,550
Distribution Items :

Stock Dividends to Common Shareholders 0

Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders (4,371,019,775)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings at the end of the year 9,338,446,775

Note: Profit appropriation for 2021 is calculated based on 174,840,791 shares, the number of shares outstanding on the Company’s third board resolution day
in 2022 (April 18, 2022). Cash dividends distribute to common shareholders is NT$25 per share. Cash dividends will be rounded down to the nearest
NT$1 with the sum of all fractional dividends less than NT$1 being recognized as other income of the Company.

Chairman: President: Accounting Officer:
Simon Lin Emily Hong Wenifred Wen

Resolution
Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-

voting and e-meeting)

% of the total
Voting Results represented share]
present
Approval votes : 144,889,624 (including 134,577,445 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 93.65 %
Disapproval votes : 45,012 (including 45,012 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.02 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Abstention votes/ No votes : 9,774,275 (including 9,752,680 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 6.33%

RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.
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Item 3

Proposal : Discussion of the issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of

GDR and/or the issuance of new common shares for cash through public offering and/or
the issuance of new common shares for cash through private placement and/or the
issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor the issuance of GDR through private
placement.

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation :

1. Fund raising purpose and size: For the purpose of fulfilling the funding needs of the Company to
purchase overseas materials, or repay bank loans, or increase working capital, or invest oversea
business, or other needs for its future development and competitiveness enhancement, it is
proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to issue up to 17 million common shares, depending
on the market conditions and the Company’s need, to choose appropriate timing and fund raising
methods in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, according to the following fund
raising method and handling principles.

2. Fund raising methods and handling principles:

(1) Issuance of new common shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR
A. In accordance with the existing provisions of the “Disciplinary Rules for Securities

Underwriters Assisting Issuing Company in the Offering and Issuance of Securities issued
by the Taiwan Securities Association,” the issue price of the new common shares for cash
capital increase for the issuance of GDR may not be lower than the closing price of the
Company’s common shares on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or 90% of the average closing
price of the common shares of the Company in one, three, or five business days prior to the
pricing date after adjustment for any distribution of stock and cash dividends or capital
reduction. In case of any changes to the relevant domestic laws, the pricing method shall be
adjusted accordingly. In view of the severe short-term fluctuations in domestic market price,
it is proposed to authorize the Chair to determine the final issue price, within the scope of
the said requirement under the Disciplinary Rules, after negotiation with the lead
underwriter depending on international capital markets, domestic market price and the
overall book building situations, to improve the subscription of international investors, so
the pricing method should be reasonable.

B. Upon the limit of 17 million common shares for the issuance of GDR through the issuance

of new common shares by capital increase, the original shareholders’ equity will be diluted
by a maximum of 9.7%. The implementation of the fundraising plan will enhance the
Company’s competitiveness and benefit the shareholders; the determination of the issue
price of the GDRs will be based on the fair trading price of common shares formed in the
domestic market. Existing shareholders may still be able to purchase common stock in
domestic stock market at the price closing to the issue price of GDR without bearing the
exchange risks and liquidity risks, and may take into account their interests.

. Except for 10% to 15% of new common shares shall be allocated for the employees’

subscription in accordance with applicable law, it is proposed for the shareholders meeting
to approve that the rights to the remaining 85% to 90% of the issuance shall be waived by
the shareholders and shall be offered to the public under Article 28-1 of Securities and
Exchange Act as the underlying shares of GDR to be sold. It is proposed to authorize the
Chairman, depending on the market needs, to allot the new common shares not subscribed
by employees of the Company as underlying shares of GDR.

(2) Issuance of new common shares for cash in public offering
A. The par value of the new common shares to be issued per share is NT$10. It is proposed to

authorize the Chairman of the Company to coordinate with the underwriter(s) of the public

offering to determine the actual issue price in accordance with the Taiwan Securities

Association's Self-regulatory Rules Governing the Provision of Advisory Services by
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Underwriter Members to Issuing Companies for Offering and Issuing Securities and the
market conditions and the issue price shall be reported to, and accepted by the regulatory
authority before issuance.

B. It is proposed to authorize the Board to choose either of the following methods to sell the
new shares in the public offering through the underwriter(s):

a. Except for 10% to 15% of the new shares must be offered to employees in accordance
with Article 267, Paragraph I of the Company Act, it is proposed for the shareholders
meeting to approve the pre-emptive rights to subscribe to the remaining shares to be
waived by the shareholders in accordance with Article 28-1 of the Securities and
Exchange Act and such remaining shares will be offered to the public via book building.
It is proposed that any new common shares not subscribed by employees of the Company
will be sold to the person(s) designated by the Chairman of the Company at the issue
price.

b. Except for 10% to 15% of the new shares must be offered to employees in accordance
with Article 267, Paragraph I of the Company Act, it is proposed that 10% of the new
shares to be sold to the public through the underwriter(s) in accordance with Article 28-
1, Paragraph 2 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the remaining shares will be
subscribed to by the existing shareholders of the Company in accordance with their
shareholding. It is proposed that any new common shares not subscribed by employees
and shareholders of the Company will be sold to the person(s) designated by the
Chairman of the Company at the issue price.

(3) Issuance of new common shares for cash in private placement and/or issuance of new common
shares for cash to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement
A. The basis and rationale to determine the private placement price:

a. The common stock price per share shall be set at no less than 85% of the reference price.
The reference price is set as the higher of the following two basis prices:

(1) The simple average closing price of the common shares of the Company for either the
one, three, or five business days before the price determination date, after adjustment
for any distribution of stock dividends, cash dividends or capital reduction.

(i1) The simple average closing price of the common shares of the Company for the thirty
business days before the price determination date, after adjustment for any distribution
of stock dividends, cash dividends, or capital reduction.

b. The pricing date, actual reference price, theoretical price, and actual issuance price are
proposed to be authorized to the Board of Directors to determine within the range approved
by the shareholders meeting, after taking into consideration the market status, objective
conditions, and qualification of specific parties. Considering that the Securities and
Exchange Act has set the restrictions on transfers of the privately placed securities for
three full years, the price determination above shall be reasonable.

B. The method to determine specific parties:

The strategic investors have the priority to be considered as specific parties for private

placement if they may being qualified for the rules in Article 43-6, Securities and Exchange

Act and other letters from government authorities and should also have direct or indirect

benefit to the Company, and can recognize the Company’s operating strategy. The company

currently has not arranged the specific parties. It is proposed to authorize the Company’s

Board of Directors to determine the specific parties for private placement.

C. The necessity of private placement:

a. The Company plans to invite strategic investors and strengthen competitiveness through
private placement. Because of the restrictions on transfers for three full years, it is better
to maintain a long-term relationship with strategic partners by such security issuance of
private placement. And also considering the effectiveness and feasibility to raise capital,
the Company proposes to raise capital through private placement, rather than public
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7.

8.

offering.

b. The amount of the private placement: up to 17 million common shares.

c. The use of proceeds and projected benefits of private placement: The Company plans to
do private placement at one time or several times (no more than 3 times) based on market
conditions and specific parties. The capital raised will be used to purchase overseas
materials, or repay bank loans, or increase working capital, or invest oversea business, or
other needs for its future development. The private placement will strengthen our
competitiveness, upgrade operating efficiency, and reinforce financial structure, which can
benefit shareholders’ equity.

. Use of proceeds, schedule and projected benefit: The Company plans to use the fund raising from

capital increase to purchase overseas materials, or repay bank loans, or increase working capital,
or invest oversea business, or other needs for its future development. The fund raising plan will
strengthen our competitiveness, upgrade operating efficiency, and reinforce financial structure,
which can benefit shareholders’ equity.

. It is proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to determine, proceed or revise the issuance plan

of new common shares to be issued to sponsor the GDR and the new common shares to be issued
in public offering, new common shares in private placement and/or new common shares to sponsor
issuance of GDR in private placement, including issue price, shares, terms and conditions, amount,
record date, plan items, projected progresses and benefits, and any other item related to the issuance
plan, based on market conditions. It is also proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to revise
the issuance plan based on operation evaluation, environment changes or if receiving instructions
from governmental authorities.

. The new common shares to be issued to sponsor issuance of GDR, the new common shares to be

issued in public offering, the new common shares in private placement and/or the new common
shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement will be issued in scripless form. However
the new common shares in private placement and the new common shares to sponsor issuance of
GDR are subject to the selling restrictions within three years after the delivery date under Article
43-8 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the new common shares to be issued to sponsor the GDR
and the new common shares to be issued in public offering, new common shares in private
placement and new common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement will have the
same rights and obligations as the Company’s existing issued and outstanding common shares.

. It is proposed to authorize the Chairman or the Chairman’s designee, on behalf of the Company, to

handle all matters relating to, and sign all agreements and documents in connection with, issuance
of new common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR and/or issuance of new common shares in
public offering and/or issuance of new common shares in private placement and/or issuance of new
common shares to sponsor issuance of GDR in private placement.

The Board is authorized to handle all matters which are not addressed herein in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations.

Please discuss.

Resolution
Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-
voting and e-meeting)

% of the total
Voting Results represented share
present
Approval votes : 133,945,194 (including 123,633,015 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 86.57 %
Disapproval votes : 10,982,400 (including10,982,400 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 7.09 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Abstention votes/ No votes : 9,781,317 (including 9,759,722votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 6.34 %

RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.



Item 4
Proposal : Discussion of amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation.”
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation :

1. In order to comply with government rules and regulations and the operational needs of the
Company, it is proposed to make amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation.” Please refer to
Attachment 5 for the before and after revision chart.

2. Please discuss.

Resolution
Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-

voting and e-meeting)

% of the total
Voting Results represented share
present
Approval votes : 143,762,857 (including 133,450,678 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 92.92 %
Disapproval votes : 1,080,739 (including1,080,739 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.69 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Abstention votes/ No votes : 9,865,315 (including 9,843,720 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 6.39 %
RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.

Item S
Proposal : Discussion of amendments to the “Procedures of Assets Acquisition and Disposal.”
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation :

1. In order to comply with government rules and regulations, it is proposed to make amendments to
the “Procedures of Assets Acquisition and Disposal.” Please refer to Attachment 6 for the before
and after revision chart.

2. Please discuss.

Resolution
Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-

voting and e-meeting)

% of the total
Voting Results represented share
present
Approval votes : 144,885,537 (including 134,573,358 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 93.65 %
Disapproval votes : 45,057 (including 45,057 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.02 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Abstention votes/ No votes : 9,778,317 (including 9,756,722 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 6.33 %
RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.

Item 6
Proposal : Discussion of amendments to the “Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting.”
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation :

1. In order to comply with government rules and regulations, it is proposed to make amendments to
the “Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting.” Please refer to Attachment 7 for the before
and after revision chart.

2. Please discuss.

Resolution
Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-
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voting and e-meeting)

% of the total
Voting Results represented share]
present
Approval votes : 143,762,812 (including 133,450,633 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 92.92 %
Disapproval votes : 1,116,774 (including 1,116,774 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.72 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %
Abstention votes/ No votes : 9,829,325 (including 9,807,730 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 6.36 %
RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.
Item 7
Proposal : Discussion of the removal of the non-compete restrictions on directors and their corporate
representatives.
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation :

1. Pursuant to Article 209 of the Company Act, “A director who does anything for himself or on behalf
of another person that is within the scope of the Company’s business, shall explain to the meeting
of shareholders the essential contents of such an act and secure its approval.”

2. To draw on the expertise and relevant experience of directors, pursuant to Article 209 of the
Company Act, it is proposed to release the prohibition on directors and their corporate
representatives, who participate in the operations of another company that engages in the same or
similar business scope as the Company.

. Concurrent positions of Directors and Independent Director as follows:

4. Please discuss.

Concurrent positions of Directors and Independent Director

[98)

Title Name Company Name and Concurrent Position
Director -\Kllersgl(;(nL(?grporatlon Representative Chairman of WiSuccess Asset Management Corporation.
Director Sunlai Chang Director of LiquidStack Holding B.V.

Independent Cathy Han Independent Director of MACROBLOCK, INC.
Director Y Independent Director of APACER TECHNOLOGY INC.
Resolution

Shares represented at the time of voting : 154,708,911 (including 144,375,137 votes casted via e-
voting and e-meeting)

% of the total

Voting Results represented share]
present
Approval votes : 128,107,658 (including 117,795,479 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 82.80 %
Disapproval votes : 8,419,530 (including 8,419,530 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 5.44 %
Invalid votes : 0 (including 0 votes casted via e-voting and e-meeting) 0.00 %

Abstention votes/ No votes : 18,181,723 (including 18,160,128 votes casted via e-voting and e-
meeting)

RESOLVED, that the above proposal be and hereby was approved as proposed.

11.76 %

ITI. Extemporary Motion : None.
IV. Adjournment : 10:04 a.m., May 31, 2022

Note : This document is extracted from the meeting; the details are subject to the audio and video recording.
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Wiwynn Corporation
Business Report

In 2021, the whole world was still under the threat of COVID-19 epidemic. During the Level 3

epidemic alert from May to July in Taiwan, Wiwynn employees were all work from home. We

were lucky to have already deployed arrangement in advance. When our company was established,
we followed a strategy of “cloud first, zero enterprise computer room” and introduced innovative

technology of information systems, including complete cloud-based enterprise application system,
block chain supply chain management, autonomous intelligent manufacturing, and hybrid cloud
information security defending system. Therefore, Wiwynn maintained normal operation without

any negative impact when employees worked from home. Wiwynn was awarded First Prize of
Pioneer in the Manufacturing Industry for comprehensive digital transformation at the 1% Digital

Transformation Awards.

However, it was not the only challenge we faced in 2021. The lack of raw materials, labor shortage,
and port congestion caused by the epidemic plus the impact of extreme climate created difficulties
in the overall supply chain. Under the state of imbalance between supply and demand, we were
unable to fully satisfy the strong demands from our customers. Nevertheless, with the efforts of
all of our colleagues, we continued growing in 2021. The scale of our operation hit a record high.
It was a difficult but fruitful year.

The consolidated operating revenue at the Company in 2021 was NT$ (the same below)
192,625,942,000, and it increased 3.05% compared to that in the previous year. The net profit
after tax was $ 8,648,012,000 with an increase of 0.44% compared to that in the previous year. It
was a record high. Affected by the impact of inflationary spike and appreciation of New Taiwan
Dollar, the gross profit margin, operating margin, and net profit margin decreased 0.1% each from
the previous year to 8.1%, 5.9%, and 4.5% respectively. The basic earnings per share (EPS) was
$49.46; it hit a record high.

In terms of sustainable development, Wiwynn also established “Corporate Sustainability
Committee” in March 2021 as well as set up relevant organizational regulations. As for
environment, Wiwynn responded to the sustainable development goal No. 14 (SDG 14) promoted
by the United Nations to conserve and sustainably use marine ecological system. We planted 800
trees on the frontline of coast near Wujie Township, Yilan County to block out the impact to the
inner land by strong northeast monsoon, salinity of the sea, and blown sand in order to protect the
life quality of the community residents. With regard to corporate governance, to enhance the
transparency to stakeholders and meet the blueprint of the corporate governance promoted by the
competent authority as early as possible, Wiwynn voluntarily disclosed the self-assessed income
information for fiscal year 2021 in January 2022. Moreover, Wiwynn participated in the 7%
Corporate Governance Assessment held by Taiwan Stock Exchange for the first time and achieved
the excellent performance of top 6%-20% of the listed companies. In the 14th Taiwan Corporate
Sustainability Awards, Wiwynn received the recognition of Gold Award in the category of
electronics and information manufacturing industry. Because of our outstanding performance in
ESG, we are included to the constituent stocks of “FTSE4Good TIP Taiwan ESG Index” and
“TWSE Corporate Governance 100 Index”.

Along with the extreme climate is getting more frequent, leaders of different countries in the
world have made a commitment on carbon reduction at United Nations Climate Summit (COP26).
The net zero emissions in 2050 is a global consensus, and customers of hyperscale data centers
all declare to achieve carbon neutral or the goal of 100% utilization of renewable energy within
next few years. Wiwynn also focuses R&D and continues developing power converter and cooling
solution with high-efficient energy saving and carbon reduction. Among them, the two-phase
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immersion cooling technology also formally entered hyperscale data center in 2021.

Our Company launched Taiwan Intellectual Property Management System (TIPS) in 2021 and
passed Level A qualification. During the promotion of TIPS, educational trainings were used for
promotion and follow-up of legal consultation to ensure the awareness of protecting intellectual
property right is enhanced. It helps the hard skills (quantity of patent) and soft skills (employees’
awareness) of intellectual property in Wiwynn grow and develop at the same time.

Looking into the future, there are still uncertainties in global economy. We are still facing the risks
in the overall supply chain. However, the new normal after the epidemic continues pushing the
demand of digital transformation. Various applications and services related to 5G, edge computing,
Al, and big data to metaverse is increasing. The cloud data center industry will continue growing.
The focus of operation in Wiwynn is as below:

1. Diverse global layout: Wiwynn Malaysia Factory has started by the end of 2021, and it is
estimated to be completed in 2023. Besides, we also plan to continue expanding our service
stations all over the world in the next two or three years to achieve the scale of 5 to 6 times of
current own capacity in order to maintain operating stability and flexibility as well as spread
risks.

2. Continue deepening digital transformation: Wiwynn plans to introduce the intelligent
manufacturing technology to our own factories and make them smart factories as well as
continues devoting actively to construct digital capabilities and culture among all our
employees. Through the activities of Hackathon and Digital Festival, we encourage
employees to widely apply relevant skills. We use Robotic Process Automation (RPA)
established creatively by employees to enhance working efficiency.

3. Implement corporate sustainable operation: We create green factories, actively use renewable
energy, continue promoting Ocean Hugs marine environment and ecology shared good
scheme, make good use of resources to protect the environment, and strengthen the
communication with stakeholders. Centered on human beings, we provide a safe and healthy
working environment to our employees and comply with the blueprint of corporate
governance promoted by the competent authority.

29 <6

We carry the core values of “excellence”, “forward-looking”, “teamwork”, and “agile” carried by
Wiwynn to march forward in a steady pace, create the maximal shareholder value, and pursue a
future of sustainable development.

Chairman: President: Accounting Officer:
Simon Lin Emily Hong Wenifred Wen
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Wiwynn Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wiwynn Corporation (“the Company”), which comprise the balance
sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

1. Revenue recognition

Refer to note 4(n) "Revenue" and note 6(r) to the financial statements for the disclosure of revenue
recognition.
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Description of key audit matter

The Company is a listed Company in related to public interest, and the investors are highly expecting the
financial performance, resulting in revenue recognition is one of the key judgmental areas of our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included testing of the design and implement of controls over sales and
collection of receivable transactions; evaluate if there is any significant abnormal changes through
performing trend analysis on top 10 customers by comparing the related changes or differences; assessing
and testing if the management obtained sufficient external evidence showing that the control of the products
have been transferred to the customers to support the timing of revenue recognition; evaluating the adequacy
of revenues recognition by testing the sale transactions during the period before and after the balance sheets
date.

2. Inventory valuation

Refer to note 4(g) "Inventories", note 5 "Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major
sources of estimation uncertainty" and note 6(d) to the financial statements for the disclosure of valuation of
inventory.

Description of key audit matter

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. With the rapid development of technology,
the advance of new electronic products may significantly change consumer demands, which leads to product
obsolescence that may result in the cost of inventory to be higher than the net realizable value. Consequently,
the valuation of inventories has been identified as one of the key Judgmental areas of our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included analyze the change of inventory aging by assessing and testing the
inventory aging report, understanding the sales price which is used to evaluate the inventory valuation by
management and the subsequent market price information as well as selecting the original transition
documentation in order to test the appropriateness of the net realize values reviewing if the estimation and
assumption used for inventory valuation and other disclosure for inventories made by management were
appropriateness.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using equity method to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Chia-Chien Tang and
Ming-Hung Huang.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 25, 2022

Notes to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance and cash flows in
accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other
jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the
Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version
prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and
Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

Wiwynn Corporation

Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

2021 2020
__Amount % Amount %
Operating revenue (notes 6(r) and 7) $ 73,162,110 100 79,017,070 100
Operating costs (notes 6(d)(f)(g)(h)(1)(m)(s), 7 and 12) 59,360,963 81 64,533,782 82
Gross profit 13,801,147 19 14,483,288 18
Unrealized profit (loss) from sales 342227 - (350.000) -
Net gross profit 14,143.374 19 14,133.288 18
Operating expenses (notes 6(b)(f)(g)(h)(1)(m)(s), 7 and 12):
Selling expenses 366,386 1 613,040 1
Administrative expenses 703,257 1 579,743 1
Research and development expenses 2411,214 3 2,136,829 2
Expected credit loss 2.501 - 1.807 -
Total operating expenses 3,483,358 5 3.331.419 4
Net operating income 10,660,016 14 10,801,869 14
Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(e)(f)(k)(I)(t) and 7):
Interest income 60,032 - 33,527 -
Other income 48 - 76 -
Other gains and losses (73,622) - (98,187) -
Finance costs (98,893) - (64,339) -
Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method 322,505 1 150.540 -
Total non-operating income and expenses 210,070 1 21,617 -
Income before tax 10,870,086 15 10,823,486 14
Income tax expense (note 6(n)) 2,222,074 3 2,213,829 3
Net income 8.648.012 12 8.609.657 11
Other comprehensive income (notes 6(e)(m)(n)(0)):
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Losses on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (4.848) - 6,121) -
Income tax related to items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit 970 ) 1204 )
or loss
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (3.878) _ - (4.897) _ -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements (193,126) - (291,808) -
Income tax related to items that may be reclassitied subsequently to profit or ) ) ) )
Totaioiizms that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (193.126) _ - (291,808) _ -
Other comprehensive income (197.004) _ - (296.705) _ -
Total comprehensive income $ 8,451,008 12 8,312,952 11
Earnings per share (expressed in New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(q))
Basic earnings per share $ 49.46 49.25
Diluted earnings per share $ 49.28 48.98

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Wiwynn Corporation

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2021 2020
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Income before tax $ 10,870,086 10,823,486
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense 349,965 286,415
Amortization expense 41,946 19,350
Expected credit loss 2,501 1,807
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (35,697) (436,049)
Interest expense 98,893 64,339
Interest income (60,032) (33,527)
Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using (322,505) (150,540)
equity method
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 95
Unrealized losses (profit) from sales (342,227) 350,000
Prepayments for equipment reclassified as expenses - 186
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (267.152) 102.076
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Decrease in financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or 35,697 436,049
loss-current
Increase in accounts receivable, net (1,136,310) (715,885)
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-related parties, net (4,501,462) 2,860,866
Decrease (increase) in other receivable (622) 172
Decrease (increase) in other receivable-related parties (934,604) 1,770,909
Increase in inventories (4,629,876) (231,039)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 619.752 (475.359)
Total changes in operating assets (10,547.425) 3,645,713
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase in contract liabilities-current 1,063,555 1,435914
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 891,588 (2,596,018)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-related parties (1,380,814) 2,659,908
Increase in other payable 88,039 277,578
Decrease in other payable-related parties (21,559) (210,015)
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 147,053 (2,369)
Decrease in net defined benefit liabilities (165) (84)
Total changes in operating liabilities 787.697 1,564.914
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (9.759,728) 5,210,627
Total adjustments (10.026.880) 5.312.703
Cash inflow generated from operations 843,206 16,136,189
Interest received 59,248 31,884
Interest paid (86,420) (58,093)
Income taxes paid (2,618.436) (1,617.776)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (1,802.402) 14.492.204
Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in other receivables —related parties (276,900) -
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (705,680) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (120,826) (295,457)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 27 -
Acquisition of intangible assets (76,076) (64,846)
Decrease in other financial assets 62 1,107
Increase in prepayments for equipment (132.656) (98.720)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,312.049) (457.9106)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings 87,062,810 70,744,296
Decrease in short-term borrowings (85,601,332) (71,307,022)
Proceeds from issuing bonds 4,442 325 4,991,500
Payment of lease liabilities (63,695) (55,471)
Cash dividends paid (5,594,905) (4,021,131)
Exercise of employee stock options - 3,237
Net cash flows from financing activities 245,203 355.409
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,869,248) 14,389,697
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 22,200,585 7,810,888
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 19,331,337 22,200,585

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Wiwynn Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wiwynn Corporation and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs™), Interpretations developed by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (““the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Revenue recognition

Refer to note 4(n) "Revenue" and note 6(r) to the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure of
revenue recognition.
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Description of key audit matter

The Group is a listed Company in related to public interest, and the investors are highly expecting the
financial performance, resulting in revenue recognition is one of the key judgmental areas of our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included testing of the design and implement of controls over sales and
collection of receivable transactions; evaluate if there is any significant abnormal changes through
performing trend analysis on top 10 customers by comparing the related changes or differences; assessing
and testing if the management obtained sufficient external evidence showing that the control of the products
have been transferred to the customers to support the timing of revenue recognition; evaluating the adequacy
of revenues recognition by testing the sale transactions during the period before and after the balance sheets
date.

2. Inventory valuation

Refer to note 4(h) "Inventories", note 5 "Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major
sources of estimation uncertainty" and note 6(d) to the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure of
valuation of inventory.

Description of key audit matter

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. With the rapid development of technology,
the advance of new electronic products may significantly change consumer demands, which leads to product
obsolescence that may result in the cost of inventory to be higher than the net realizable value. Consequently,
the valuation of inventories has been identified as one of the key Judgmental areas of our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included analyze the change of inventory aging by assessing and testing the
inventory aging report, understanding the sales price which is used to evaluate the inventory valuation by
management and the subsequent market price information as well as selecting the original transition
documentation in order to test the appropriateness of the net realize values reviewing if the estimation and
assumption used for inventory valuation and other disclosure for inventories made by management were
appropriateness.

Other Matter

Wiwynn Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs,
IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.


10701602
印章


KPMG

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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KPMG

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Chia-Chien Tang and
Ming-Hung Huang.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 25, 2022

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors” audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

4000
5000

6100
6200
6300
6450

7100
7010
7020
7050
7370

7900
7950

8300
8310
8311
8349

8360
8361
8399

8300
8500

8610

8710

9750
9850

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Wiwynn Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating revenue (notes 6(r) and 7)
Operating costs (notes 6(d)(f)(g)(h)()(m)(s), 7 and 12)
Gross profit from operations
Operating expenses (notes 6(b)(f)(g)(h)(1)(m)(s), 7 and 12):
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Expected credit loss (gain)
Total operating expenses
Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(e)(f)(g)(kK)(1)(t) and
7):
Interest income
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Share of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method
Total non-operating income and expenses
Income before tax
Income tax expense (note 6(n))
Net income
Other comprehensive income (notes 6(e)(m)(n)(0)):
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Loss on remeasurements of defined benefits plans
Income tax related to items that may not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Total items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements
Income tax related to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income
Profit attributable to:
Owners of parent
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of parent
Earnings per share (expressed in New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(q))
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2021 2020
Amount % Amount %
$192,625,942 100 186,927,647 100
177,004,761 92 171,626,518 92
15,621,181 8 15,301,129 8
936,512 1 1,228,494 1
835,779 - 658,157 -
2,459,313 1 2,179,233 1
2,501 - (6,609) -
4,234,105 2 4,059,275 2
11,387,076 6 11241854 6
61,593 - 38,984 -
48 - 76 -
(64,374) - (89,179) -
(356,154) - (304,316) -
(32,120) - - -
(391,007) - (354,435) -
10,996,069 6 10,887,419 6
2,348,057 1 2,277,762 1
8.648.012 5 8.609.657 5
4,848) - 6,121) -
970 - 1,224 -
(3,878) - (4.897) _ -
(193,126) - (291,808) -
(193,126) - (291,808) -
(197,004) - (296,705) -
$ 8,451,008 5 8,312,952 5
$ 8,648,012 5 8,609,657 5
$ 8,451,008 5 8,312,952 5
49.46 49.25
49.28 48.98
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
Wiwynn Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

2021 2020
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Income before tax $ 10,996,069 10,887,419
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense 505,835 371,292
Amortization expense 41,946 19,350
Expected credit loss (gain) 2,501 (6,609)
Net gains on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (35,697) (436,049)
Interest expense 356,154 304,316
Interest income (61,593) (38,984)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 32,120 -
Losses (gains) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (503) 95
Prepayments for equipment reclassified as expenses 2,181 186
Lease modification losses (gains) (3,119) 313
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 839.825 213910
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Decrease in financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or 35,697 436,049
loss-current
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable, net (5,053,598) 5,628,430
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-related parties, net (103,320) 75,714
Decrease (increase) in other receivable (653) 2,634
Decrease in other receivable-related parties 186,630 1,734,239
Increase in inventories (26,689,003) (3,394,994)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 596.814 (498.840)
Total changes in operating assets (31,027.433) 3.983.232
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase in contract liabilities-current 1,063,555 1,435,914
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 6,320,769 (4,086,436)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-related parties (21,824) 3,105,001
Increase in other payable 333,116 440,006
Decrease in other payable-related parties (69,014) (59,222)
Increase in other current liabilities 334,872 96,938
Decrease in net defined benefit liabilities (165) (84)
Total changes in operating liabilities 7.961.309 932.117
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (23,066,124) 4.915.349
Total adjustments (22.226.299) 5.129.259
Cash inflow generated from (used in) operations (11,230,230) 16,016,678
Interest received 60,808 37,341
Interest paid (334,181) (303,088)
Income taxes paid (2,708.854) (1,658.747)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (14,212.457) 14,092,184
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (276,609) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (333,376) (387,276)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,562 -
Acquisition of intangible assets (76,076) (64,846)
Increase in other non-current assets (180,716) (1,136)
Increase in prepayments for equipment (177.278) (165.402)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,039.493) (618.660)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings 125,641,712 99,065,137
Decrease in short-term borrowings (109,510,172) (102,169,488)
Proceeds from issuing bonds 4,442 325 4,991,500
Cash dividends paid (5,594,905) (4,021,131)
Exercise of employee stock options - 3,237
Payment of lease liabilities (124.407) (94.946)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 14,854,553 (2,225,691)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (98.942) (70,741)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (496,339) 11,177,092
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 23.169.231 11,992,139
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S 22,672,892 23,169,231

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2021 Business Report, Financial Statements,
and Proposal for Distribution of Profits. The CPAs Chia-Chien Tang and Ming-Hung Huang form
KPMG performed Wiwynn’s Financial Statements Audit and issued an audit report. The Business
Report, Financial Statements, and Proposal of Distribution of Profit have been reviewed and
determined to be correct and accurate by the Audit Committee of Wiwynn Corporation. According
to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act, I hereby
submit this Report.

Wiwynn Corporation

Convener of the Audit Committee : Simon Dzeng

April 18, 2022



[ Attachment 3 )

Wiwynn Corporation

Codes of Ethical Conduct
(Before and After Revision Chart)

Items Before Revision After Revision Reason
Article 5 | Giving Presents and Treats as Part of | Giving Presents and Treats as Part of | To comply with
Business Routine Business Routine the Company’s
............ operational
(4) One must not subscribe any (4) One must not subscribe any | peeds.
shares of stock or any other shares of stock or any other
similar preferential packages similar preferential packages
outside the open market from any outside the open market from any
units or companies that are units or companies that are
involved in Company’s business involved in Company’s business
operations. operations.
______ (5) One must not receive presents or
any types of gifts more than three
times a vyear from the same
supplier and client.
Article 11 | Enforcement and Amendment Enforcement and Amendment Correspondence
This Code of Ethical Conduct will be | This Code of Ethical Conduct will be | {4 the

implemented after adoption by the
resolution of the Board of Directors,
amendments likewise, and will be
reported to the shareholders meeting.
This Code of Ethical Conduct was
enacted on October 30, 2017.

The 1st amendment was made on
November 06, 2019.

implemented after adoption by the
resolution of the Board of Directors,
amendments likewise, and will be
reported to the shareholders meeting.
This Code of Ethical Conduct was
enacted on October 30, 2017.

The 1st amendment was made on
November 06, 2019.

The 2nd amendment was made on
January 18, 2022.

amendment date.




[ Attachment 4 )

Wiwynn Corporation
Codes of Ethical Conduct

Article 1 Purpose
This Code of Ethical Conduct is hereby established to enforce Wiwynn Corporation (hereinafter
“Company”)’s core values, maintain its high level of business ethics and require Relevant Personnel
to strictly abide by Company’s standard code of ethical conduct in order to uphold Company’s
reputation and to gain the respect and trust of customers, suppliers and professionals of all fields.
Article 2 Applicability and Definition
This Code of Ethical Conduct shall apply to all directors (including the independent directors;
hereinafter “Directors’), managers and employees (hereinafter “Relevant Personnel”).
Article 3 Important Code of Ethical Conduct
1. Integrity is Company’s core value and the root of operating an enterprise. To operate an enterprise

in integrity, Company shall provide an environment and atmosphere that will allow Relevant

Personnel to execute their duties in accordance with ethical standard. Company requires all Relevant

Personnel to fully understand and abide by this Code of Ethical Conduct and self-integrity. The

following is the relevant and important code of ethical conduct:

(1) Unless authorized or required by law, Relevant Personnel must strictly keep confidential the
information related to Company or its clients whom Company purchases goods from or whom
Company sells products to. The confidential information shall include all information that
could be possibly used by competitors or cause damages to Company or its clients after
disclosure.

(2) When Relevant Personnel use information related to Company or its clients whom Company
purchases goods from or whom Company sells products to, they must not contravene any
applicable laws or Company’s Policies and Procedures on the Protection of Confidential
Information.

(3) Relevant Personnel must treat clients whom Company purchases goods from or whom
Company sells products to, the competing companies and employees on a fair and equal basis,
and must not use the information obtained through job convenience to manipulate, conceal or
misuse such information to make false statement on important matters, or use such information
to obtain unjust benefits through other unjust transactions.

(4) Relevant Personnel must be loyal to their job. Their execution of duties, including disposition
of money, purchase, safekeeping assets, evaluation of performances and making and
ratification of reports, shall be accomplished with integrity, diligence and dedication.

(5) Relevant Personnel have the duty to protect Company’s assets and resources, and ensure that
such assets and resources can be lawfully and effectively used in business operations. It is
strictly prohibited to use Company’s assets or resources to gain personal interest. Relevant
Personnel shall also recuse from negatively affecting Company’s interest through personal or
department’s interest or through stealing, neglecting, and wasting Company’s assets and
resources.

(6) Relevant Personnel must recuse from any conflict that will result in the conflict of personal
and Company’s interest.

(7) Relevant Personnel must not participate or instigate others to proceed in activities or
relationships that might cause harm to loyalty or professional judgment.

(8) Relevant Personnel must not request, accept or give any gifts, donations, political donations or
treats (bribery) that might cause harm to loyalty or professional judgment.

(9) Relevant Personnel must not commit any acts that will damage the reputation of Company.

(10) Relevant Personnel must abide by national laws, rules and regulations. Relevant Personnel
must not be involved in any illegal or inappropriate activities under any circumstances.

(11) Relevant Personnel must not seek an opportunity to pursue personal gain by using Company’s
property or information, or by taking advantage of their positions. Relevant Personnel must
not obtain personal gain by using Company property or information, or by taking advantage
of their positions. Relevant Personnel must not compete with Company. When Company has
an opportunity for profit, Directors, supervisors and managers have responsibility to maximize
the reasonable and proper benefits that can be obtained by Company.

. The Codes of Ethical Conduct will not be limited to acts, rules and regulations. The spirit in the

execution of this is in the high level of self-restrain, and that one will abide by the Codes without

violating general conventions. When Relevant Personnel cannot determine whether an action or a

circumstance fits with Company’s Codes of Ethical Conduct, one should check its adequacy based

on the following principles:

(1) Whether the disclosure of such relationship or action will cause negative effects to Company’s
reputation.

(2) Whether the process of such relationship or action will be generally interpreted as having
effects on the just execution of job duties or professional judgment

Article 4 Recusal Policy on the Conflict of Interest
1. Relevant Personnel shall recuse from any conflict that will cause conflict between the personal and

Company’s interest. Therefore, Relevant Personnel shall actively and fully report to their supervisor
and the head of Human Resource department (applicable for Relevant Personnel who are not
director), or the Board of Directors (applicable for Directors) upon knowing or facing, including,
but not limited to the following circumstances and explain how the personal interest can be
conflicting with Company’s interest:



[ Attachment 4 )

Article 5

Article 6

Article 7

Article 8

(1) When the positions held by the Relevant Personnel might let them, their spouse or third-degree
relatives gain unjust benefits, or obstruct their objective and effective handling of business
operations.

(2) When the activities participated by the Relevant Personnel outside the Company cause direct
competition against Company’s business, or obstruct with the Relevant Personnel’s positions
and duties in the Company.

(3) Using Company’s resources (such as information, objects or properties, etc.) to participate in
activities outside the Company without Company’s permission.

(4) Has third-degree relatives working in the Company.

2. When Company receives reports from Relevant Personnel on how their actions do not fit the Recusal
Policy on the Conflict of Interest, the chairman (applicable for Directors) or the head of Human
Resource department (applicable for Relevant Personnel who are not director), together with the
head of Relevant Personnel’s department shall discuss the handling principles and procedures, and
pass the case to the general manager (applicable for Relevant Personnel who are not director) for
authorization, or pass the case to the Board of Directors (applicable for Directors) to handle.

Giving Presents and Treats as Part of Business Routine

1. To maintain the highest standard for ethical conduct, any form of bribery is strictly prohibited from
suppliers, contractors, clients and other relevant parties and groups (including governmental
agencies) involved in the Company’s business operations. In normal business relations, receiving
reasonable presents and treats shall comply with Sections 2 and 3 of this Articles 5.

2. When it is necessary to receive presents or any types of gifts, one shall proceed in accordance to the
following in addition to abiding by Section 1 of Article 5:

(1) One must not accept cash, check or any valuable papers (such as gift coupons or stocks, etc.).

(2) When one has to accept the presents or treats as a courtesy, the value of such must not exceed
the equivalent amount of NTD1,000. If the presents include trademark, then the value of such
must not exceed the equivalent amount of NTD$6,000.

(3) Ifone has to accept a present because the refusal might cause adverse effect and such present’s
value is higher than the limits set forth in Section 2(2) of this Article 5 above, such present
shall be handed to the Executive Secretary of the Employees’ Welfare Committee within seven
days of acceptance.

(4) One must not subscribe any shares of stock or any other similar preferential packages outside
the open market from any units or companies that are involved in Company’s business
operations.

(5) One must not receive presents or any types of gifts more than three times a year from the same
supplier and client.

3. To maintain and promote the normal business relationship and operation of Company, one may be
permitted to give presents to relevant individuals involved in Company’s business operations.
However, such acts must comply with Section 1 of this Article 5 and the following rules:

(1) Declare the purpose of giving presents and the presents shall contain Company’s name.

(2) One shall select the most appropriate presents for subjects from the presents provided by
Company.

4. Acceptance and arrangement of any treats related to business operations shall comply with the rules
of general business courtesy and shall not be too frequent, and shall not let customers or suppliers
misunderstand that giving presents or treats is a condition for establishing or maintaining the
business relationship with Company.

5. The relationship and interaction between superiors and employees shall also comply with this Article
5.

6. If any inappropriate behavior is identified or a report is received that colleagues or departments do
not comply with the above-mentioned provisions and have accepted presents in private, Company
shall deal with this report in accordance with relevant rules.

The Procedure for Provision of Lawful Political Donations

When Relevant Personnel makes direct or indirect donations to a political party or an organization or

individual participating in political activities, they shall abide by the following basic principles:

1. They shall comply with the Political Donations Act and relevant laws and regulations, and shall not
use it to seek any commercial benefits or transaction advantages.

2. They shall not directly or indirectly provide political donations in the name of Company.

3. They shall not use any of Company’s properties or facilities, or participate in political activities
during working hours.

4. When making political donations in Company’s name, it must be done only after the approval of the
chairman notwithstanding the amount of such donation.

The Procedure and Amount Standards for Handling the Provision of Fair and Charitable

Donations or Sponsorship

When Relevant Personnel make charitable donations or sponsorship, they shall abide by the following

basic principles:

1. It shall be done pursuant to relevant laws and regulations and Company’s rules, and shall not turn
into an act of bribery through other manners.

2. If one makes a lawful charitable donation or sponsorship in Company’s name, it must be done only
after the approval of the chairman notwithstanding the amount of such donation or sponsorship. In
the event that the laws and regulations have more restrictive standards, such standards shall prevail.

The Execution of Code of Ethical Conduct

1. To achieve ethical corporate management, Human Resource department is delegated to  establish
and supervise the implementation of the ethical corporate management policies and related
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Article 9

Article 10

Article 11

measures, and it shall report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. Relevant units shall provide

training and publicize this Code of Ethical Conduct to ensure all Relevant Personnel understand,

accept and will strictly abide by this Code of Ethical Conduct.

2. Relevant Personnel shall continue to publicize this Code of Ethical Conduct to business related units
or other companies that have business relations with Company to ensure they understand and
support Company’s determination and polices of the ethical corporate management.

Disciplinary measures on Relevant Personnel in violation of this Code of Ethical Conduct

1. Company encourages insiders and outsiders to report any activities which violate this Code of
Ethical Conduct; however, insiders shall not make any false report or malicious accusation. Anyone
who make false report or malicious accusation shall be subject to a disciplinary action, and removed
from office if the circumstance concerned is material.

2. Accuser shall at least furnish the following information:

(1) Accuser’s name and identity number and contact information.

(2) Accused’s name or other information sufficient to identify the accused.

(3) Specific facts and evidences available for investigation.

3. Company personnel handling accusation shall represent in writing that they will keep accuser’s
identity and accusation confidential. Company shall protect accuser from improper treatment due to
the making of accusation. The unit in charge of accusation shall handle the accusation in accordance
with the following procedure:

(1) Accusation involving a general employee shall be reported to the head of Human Resource
department. Accusation involving a director or senior manager shall be reported to the head
of Auditing Office or the independent directors.

(2) The unit in charge of accusation and the head or personnel being reported to in Section 3(2) of
this Article 9 shall immediately verify the facts, and be provided with the assistance from other
related department if necessary.

(3) If the accused is confirmed to have violated this Code of Ethical Conduct, Company shall
immediately demand the accused to cease the conduct and make an appropriate disposition.
When necessary, Company will institute legal proceedings and seek damages to safeguard its
reputation and its rights and interests.

(4) The transaction counterparties violating this Code of Ethical Conduct will be strictly treated
by Company by reducing or canceling the collaboration with Company or reported to the
corresponding judicial authorities depending on the severity.

(5) Documentation of accusation acceptance, investigation processes and investigation results
shall be retained for five years and may be retained electronically. In the event a lawsuit
relating to the accusation is filed before the retention period expires, the relevant information
shall continue to be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

(6) With respect to a confirmed accusation, Company shall charge relevant units with the task of
reviewing the internal control system and relevant procedures and proposing corrective
measures to prevent recurrence.

(7) The unit in charge of accusation shall submit to the Board of Directors a report of the
accusation, actions taken and subsequent reviews and corrective measures.

Directors who violate this Code of Ethical Conduct will be referred to the Board of Directors for

investigation

If managers or employees violate this Code of Ethical Conduct, Company will take disciplinary

measures including dismissal or termination of appointment in accordance with the relevant provisions

under the Employees’ Reward and Punishment Operation Essentials.

Company will seriously deal with transaction counterparties that violate the principles of good faith

and integrity, and will reduce or cancel its collaboration with Company or even hand it over to the

corresponding judicial authorities depending on the severity.

Enforcement and Amendment

This Code of Ethical Conduct will be implemented after adoption by the resolution of the Board of

Directors, amendments likewise, and will be reported to the shareholders meeting.

This Code of Ethical Conduct was enacted on October 30, 2017.

The 1st amendment was made on November 06, 2019.

The 2nd amendment was made on January 18, 2022.
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Wiwynn Corporation

Articles of Incorporation
(Before and After Revision Chart)

Items Before Revision After Revision Reason
Article 9 | The shareholders’ meetings of the | The sharcholders’ meetings of the | To comply with
Company are divided into annual general | Company are divided into annual general | e Company’s
shareholders’ meetings ~and | shareholders’ meetings ~and operational needs
extraordinary sharecholders’ meetings. | extraordinary shareholders’ meetings. |
The annual general shareholders’ | The annual general shareholders’
meeting should be duly convened within | meeting should be duly convened within
six (6) months following the close of | six (6) months following the close of
each  fiscal year.  Extraordinary | each  fiscal year.  Extraordinary
shareholders’ meetings may be convened | shareholders’ meetings may be convened
when necessary in accordance with laws | when necessary in accordance with laws
and regulations. and regulations.
The shareholders’ meeting of the
Company can be held by means of visual
communication network or  other
methods promulgated by the central
competent authority.
In case a shareholders’ meeting is
proceeded via visual communication
network, then the shareholders taking
part in such a visual communication
meeting shall be deemed to have
attended the meeting in person.
Article 25 | The Procedure was enacted on February | The Procedure was enacted on February | Correspondence
20,2012. ...... 20, 2012....... The 8th amendment was | to the

made on May 31, 2022,

amendment date.
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Wiwynn Corporation

Procedures of Assets Acquisition and Disposal
(Before and After Revision Chart)

Items Before Revision After Revision Reason
Article3-1 | ...... | To comply with
When issuing an appraisal report or When issuing an appraisal report or the _ updated
opinion, the personnel referred to in the |opinion, the personnel referred to in the regulation.
preceding paragraph shall comply with  |preceding paragraph shall comply with
the following: the self-regulatory rules of the industry
1. Prior to accepting a case, they shall associations to which they belong and
prudently assess their own with the following provisions:
professional capabilities, practical 1. Prior to accepting a case, they shall
experience, and independence. prudently assess their own
2. When examining a case, they shall professional capabilities, practical
appropriately plan and execute experience, and independence.
adequate working procedures, in order |2. When conducting-examining a case,
to produce a conclusion and use the they shall appropriately plan and
conclusion as the basis for issuing the execute adequate working procedures,
report or opinion. The related working in order to produce a conclusion and
procedures, data collected, and use the conclusion as the basis for
conclusion shall be fully and issuing the report or opinion. The
accurately specified in the case related working procedures, data
working papers. collected, and conclusion shall be
3. They shall undertake an item-by-item fully and accurately specified in the
evaluation of the comprehensiveness, case working papers.
accuracy, and reasonableness of the 3. They shall undertake an item-by-item
sources of data used, the parameters, evaluation of the appropriateness
and the information, as the basis for cepppeehopslosnans sece and
issuance of the appraisal report or the reasonableness of the sources of data
opinion. used, the parameters, and the
4. They shall issue a statement attesting information, as the basis for issuance
to the professional competence and of the appraisal report or the opinion.
independence of the personnel who 4. They shall issue a statement attesting
prepared the report or opinion, and to the professional competence and
that they have evaluated and found independence of the personnel who
that the information used is reasonable prepared the report or opinion, and
and accurate, and that they have that they have evaluated and found
complied with applicable laws and that the information used is
regulations. appropriate and reasonable and—
aeeurate, and that they have complied
with applicable laws and regulations.
ArticleS | ..... . To comply with

E}I‘ ..1; " UI' ..1; L.
purchasedand sold-on the - purchased-and sold-on-the -
copemnlimedamtebana s panclos o coprmelimedarehanae oanliat o
Sk b e
b | g horized| e | ’ horized]
the Board-of Directors-to— the Board-of Directorsto—
lecid | . ecid | .
that-amountisnot-more than— that-amountisnot-more than—

$300 million. d | 5300 million, 4 I
. oy il . " ol
Plossens o paloiad onpl Llosemees o pelaled oo
. e | . b |
Sotele eliibene cpcedipan coele Lo e iilee cpseadinas
| . F Article 12 | . F Article 12

the Company’s
operational needs.
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Items

Before Revision

After Revision

Reason

(c¢) Short-term idle funds invested
in short-term securities such as
domestic government bonds,
domestic bond funds, financial
bonds, American government
bond and oversea bond fund
with good credit rating,
domestic money market funds,
whereby the approval of CFO
is required for each single
transaction or the daily total
amount not exceeding NT$ 2
billion; and the approval of the
chairman of the board is
required for amount exceeding
NTS$ 2 billion.

(2) The acquisition or disposition of
real estate or right-of-use assets
shall be approved by the Board of
Directors before its execution,
except that the chairman of the
board is authorized by the Board of
Directors to execute a project that
is not more than NT$300 million,
and it will be reported to the Board
of Directors thereafter. However,
the acquisition or disposition of
real property or right-of-use assets
to a related party, is not in the
scope of this authorization, but
shall apply the provisions of
Article 12 paragraph 2.

(3) Acquisition or disposition of the
Company and its parent and
subsidiary, or transaction between
the subsidiaries in which it directly
or indirectly holds 100 percent of
the issued shares or authorized
capital of the Company equipment
or right-of-use assets used for
operating purposes and real
property right-of-use assets used
for operating purposes, to
authorize the Chairman of the
Board of Directors or its
authorized personnel decisions
NT$300 million, and afterwards
would then be sent the most recent
of the Board for ratification.
Otherwise, the acquisition or
disposition of equipment or right-
of-use assets; for any projects the
amount is more than NT$300
million, must be approved by the
Board of Directors, the chairman
of the Board or his authorized
officers decides for other projects
before its executions.

(4) The acquisition or disposition of
derivative products shall be
authorized to relevant personnel in

(b)te) Short-term idle funds
invested in short-term
securities such as domestic
government bonds, domestic
bond funds, financial bonds,
American government bond
and oversea bond fund with
good credit rating, domestic
money market funds, whereby
the approval of CFO is required
for each single transaction or
the daily total amount not
exceeding NT$ 2 billion; and
the approval of the chairman of
the board is required for
amount exceeding NT$ 2
billion.

(2) The acquisition or disposition of
real estate or right-of-use assets
shall be approved by the Board of
Directors before its execution,
except that the chairman of the
board is authorized by the Board of
Directors to execute a project that
is not more than NT$300 million,
and it will be reported to the Board
of Directors thereafter. However—

B

Otherwise-the-The acquisition or
disposition of equipment or right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets
or right-of-use assets such as
Membership certificates, patent
right, copyright, trademark right
franchise; for any projects the
amount is more than NT$300
million, must be approved by the
Board of Directors, the chairman
of the Board or his authorized
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Items Before Revision After Revision Reason
accordance with the “Rules and officers decides for other projects
Procedures of Derivative before its executions.
Transactions,” which formulated (4) The transaction object conforms to
by the Company, and shall report the related party transactions
to the soonest meeting of Board of regulated in Article 12 of these
Directors. procedures, the provisions of
paragraph 2 of Article 12 shall
prevail.
(5)t4 The acquisition or disposition of
derivative products shall be
authorized to relevant personnel in
accordance with the “Rules and
Procedures of Derivative
Transactions,” which formulated
by the Company, and shall report
to the soonest meeting of Board of
Directors.
Article6 | ... To comply with
(6) Except for asset transactions (6) Except for asset transactions the _ updated
provided in the preceding five provided in the preceding five regulation.
items, or an investment in the items, or an investment in the
mainland China area, where the mainland China area, where the
transaction amount reaching 20% transaction amount reaching 20%
of the Company’s paid-in capital of the Company’s paid-in capital
or in exceeds NT$300 million; or in exceeds NT$300 million;
however, not included otherwise however, not included otherwise
provided below: provided below:
(a) purchase and sale of domestic (a) purchase and sale of domestic
government bonds, government bonds or foreign
(b) purchase and sale of bonds with government bonds with a rating
put or call conditions, or that is not lower than the
subscription or repurchase of sovereign rating of Taiwan,
money market funds issued by (b) purchase and sale of bonds with
domestic securities investment put or call conditions, or
trust enterprises. subscription or repurchase of
,,,,,, money market funds issued by
domestic securities investment
trust enterprises.
Article 10 | ...... ... To comply with

3. Where any one of the following
circumstances applies with respect to
the professional appraiser's appraisal
results, unless all the appraisal results
for the assets to be acquired are higher
than the transaction amount, or all the
appraisal results for the assets to be
disposed of are lower than the
transaction amount, a certified public
accountant shall be engaged to
perform the appraisal in accordance
with the provisions of Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 20 published
by the ROC Accounting Research and
Development Foundation (ARDF) and
render a specific opinion regarding the
reason for the discrepancy and the
appropriateness of the transaction
price:

3. Where any one of the following
circumstances applies with respect to
the professional appraiser's appraisal
results, unless all the appraisal results
for the assets to be acquired are higher
than the transaction amount, or all the
appraisal results for the assets to be
disposed of are lower than the
transaction amount, a certified public
accountant shall be engaged to

pesemthe s sl necoadanas
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render a specific opinion regarding the
reason for the discrepancy and the
appropriateness of the transaction
price:

the updated
regulation.
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Items

Before Revision

After Revision

Reason

Articlel1

1. The Company acquiring or disposing of
securities shall, prior to the date of

occurrence of the event, obtain
financial statements of the issuing
company for the most recent period,
certified or reviewed by a certified
public accountant, for reference in

appraising the transaction price, and if

the dollar amount of the transaction is
20 percent of the Company's paid-in
capital or NT$300 million or more, the
Company shall additionally engage a
certified public accountant prior to the
date of occurrence of the event to
provide an opinion regarding the
reasonableness of the transaction price.
If the CPA needs to use the report of an
expert as evidence, the CPA shall do so

in accordance with the provisions of

Statement of Auditing Standards No. 20
published by the ARDF. This
requirement does not apply, however,
to publicly quoted prices of securities
that have an active market, or where

otherwise provided by regulations of

the Financial Supervisory Commission
(FSO).

2. Where the Company acquires or
disposes of intangible assets or right-
of-use assets thereof or memberships
and the transaction amount reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in capital or
NT$300 million or more, except in
transactions with a domestic
government agency, the Company
shall engage a certified public
accountant prior to the date of
occurrence of the event to render an
opinion on the reasonableness of the
transaction price; the CPA shall
comply with the provisions of
Statement of Auditing Standards No.
20 published by the ARDF.

1. The Company acquiring or disposing of
securities shall, prior to the date of

occurrence of the event, obtain
financial statements of the issuing
company for the most recent period,
certified or reviewed by a certified
public accountant, for reference in

appraising the transaction price, and if

the dollar amount of the transaction is
20 percent of the Company's paid-in
capital or NT$300 million or more, the
Company shall additionally engage a
certified public accountant prior to the
date of occurrence of the event to
provide an opinion regarding the
reasonableness of the transaction price.
Dbt e e s e pns s a o
operaresidenes e D0 slall e o
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pebbehed e b TR This
requirement does not apply, however,
to publicly quoted prices of securities
that have an active market, or where

otherwise provided by regulations of

the Financial Supervisory Commission
(FSC).

2. Where the Company acquires or
disposes of intangible assets or right-
of-use assets thereof or memberships
and the transaction amount reaches 20
percent or more of paid-in capital or
NT$300 million or more, except in
transactions with a domestic
government agency, the Company
shall engage a certified public
accountant prior to the date of
occurrence of the event to render an
opinion on the reasonableness of the
transaction price:the- CPA-shall-

comiplarahthe sresta s 0

To comply with

the

updated

regulation.

Articlel12

The calculation of the transaction
amounts referred to in this Article shall
be made in accordance with Article 6,
paragraph 2 herein, and “within the
preceding year” as used herein refers to
the year preceding the date of occurrence
of the current transaction. Items that
have been approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors
need not be counted toward the
transaction amount.

With respect to the types of transactions
listed below when to be conducted

With respect to the types of transactions
listed below when to be conducted
between the Company and its parent and
subsidiaries, or between its subsidiaries
in which it directly or indirectly holds
100 percent of the issued shares or
authorized capital and when the
transaction is within the authorized
amount, the Chairman of the Board may,
pursuant to the item 3 of paragraph 2 of
Article 5, decide such matters and have
the decisions subsequently submitted to
and ratified at the next Board of

To comply with

the

updated

regulation.
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Items Before Revision After Revision Reason
between the Company and its parent and |Directors meeting:
subsidiaries, or between its subsidiaries 1. Acquisition or disposal of equipment
in which it directly or indirectly holds or right-of-use assets thereof held for
100 percent of the issued shares or business use.
authorized capital and when the 2. Acquisition or disposal of real
transaction is within the authorized property right-of-use assets held for
amount, the Chairman of the Board may, business use.
pursuant to the item 3 of paragraph 2 of | If the Company or its subsidiaries not
Article 5, decide such matters and have categorized as domestic public company
the decisions subsequently submitted to will have a transaction set out in
and ratified at the next Board of paragraph 2 and the transaction amount
Directors meeting: will reach 10 percent or more of the
1. Acquisition or disposal of equipment | Company’s total assets, the Company
or right-of-use assets thereof held for | shall submit the materials in all the
business use. subparagraphs of paragraph 2 to the
2. Acquisition or disposal of real shareholders meeting for approval before
property right-of-use assets held for the transaction contract may be entered
business use. into and any payment made. However,
this restriction does not apply to
transactions between the Company and
its parent company or subsidiaries or
between its subsidiaries.
The calculation of the transaction
amounts referred to in paragraph 2 and
the preceding paragraph this-Asticle
shall be made in accordance with Article
6, paragraph 2 herein, and “within the
preceding year” as used herein refers to
the year preceding the date of
occurrence of the current transaction.
Items that have been approved by the
shareholders meeting, the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors
need not be counted toward the
transaction amount.
Article 29 | The Procedures were enacted on August | The Procedures were enacted on August | Correspondence
20,2012. ...... 20, 2012. ...... The 4th amendment was | to the
made on May 31, 2022. amendment

date.
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Wiwynn Corporation

Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting
(Before and After Revision Chart)

Before Revision

After Revision

Reason

Article 3
The Company shall specify, in meeting notices,
the attending shareholders’ check-in time and
the place for such meeting and other important
matters.

The check-in time for attending sharcholder
shall commence from at least thirty (30) minutes
prior to the meeting. There shall be clear signs
and sufficient and adequate staffs in the check-
in place.

Shareholders and their appointed proxies
(collectively, “shareholders”) shall attend
shareholders meetings based on attendance
cards, sign-in cards, or other certificates of
attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily
add requirements for other documents beyond
those showing eligibility to attend presented by
shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms
shall also bring identification documents for
verification.

Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be
calculated based on numbers of shares. The
number of shares in attendance shall be
calculated according to the shares indicated by
the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in
plus the number of shares whose voting rights
are  exercised by  correspondence  or
electronically.

Article 3

The Company shall specify, in meeting notices,
the check-in time of attending
shareholders, solicitors and proxies
(collectively "shareholders"), as well as
shareholders”cheek-intime—and the place for
such meeting and other important matters.

The check-in time for attending shareholder
shall commence from at least thirty (30) minutes
prior to the meeting. There shall be clear signs
and sufficient and adequate staffs in the check-
in place. For virtual shareholders meetings,
shareholders may begin to register on the virtual
meeting platform 30 minutes before the meeting
starts. Shareholders completing registration will
be deemed as attend the shareholders meeting in

person.
Sharcholders—and—their—appointed—proxies
(eollectively;—shareholders™—shall attend

shareholders meetings based on attendance
cards, sign-in cards, or other certificates of
attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily
add requirements for other documents beyond
those showing eligibility to attend presented by
shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms
shall also bring identification documents for
verification.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,
shareholders wishing to attend the meeting
online shall register with the Company two days
before the meeting date.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,
the Company shall upload the meeting agenda
book, annual report and other meeting materials
to the virtual meeting platform at least 30
minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this
information disclosed until the end of the
meeting.

Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be
calculated based on numbers of shares. The
number of shares in attendance shall be
calculated according to the shares indicated by
the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in,
and the shares checked in on the virtual meeting
platform, plus the number of shares whose
voting rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronically.

To comply with

the

updated

regulation.

Article 4

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder
may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by
providing the form of proxy issued by the
Company and stating the scope of the proxy’s
authorization.

Article 4

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder
may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by
providing the form of proxy issued by the
Company and stating the scope of the proxy’s
authorization.

If, after a proxy form is delivered to the
Company, a sharcholder wishes to attend the

To comply with

the

updated

regulation.
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Before Revision

After Revision

Reason

shareholders meeting online, a written notice of
proxy cancellation shall be submitted to the
Company two business days before the meeting
date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after
that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy
shall prevail.

Article 6

Atrticle 6

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall
not apply when the Company convenes a
virtual-only sharecholders meeting.

When the Company convenes a virtual-only
shareholders meeting, both the chair and
secretary shall be in the same location, and the
chair shall declare the address of their location
when the meeting is called to order.

To comply with
the updated
regulation.

Article 9

The records referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be retained for at least one (1)
year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit
pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act of
the Republic of China, the recording shall be
retained until the legal proceedings of the
foregoing lawsuit have been concluded.

Article 9

The records referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall be retained for at least one (1)
year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit
pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act of
the Republic of China, the recording shall be
retained until the legal proceedings of the
foregoing lawsuit have been concluded.

Where a shareholders meeting is held online
the Company shall keep records of shareholder
registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised,
votes cast and results of votes counted by the
Company, and continuously audio and video
record, without interruption, the proceedings of
the virtual meeting from beginning to end.

The information and audio and video recording
in the preceding paragraph shall be properly
kept by the Company during the entirety of its
existence, and copies of the audio and video
recording shall be provided to and kept by the
party appointed to handle matters of the virtual
meeting.

In case of a virtual sharecholders meeting, the
Company is advised to audio and video record
the back-end operation interface of the virtual
meeting platform.

To comply with
the updated
regulation.

Article 10

If after two postponements the number of shares
represented by the attending shareholders has
not yet constituted more than one third of the
total number of issued and outstanding shares,
the chairman shall announce the termination of
the meeting .If after two postponements in the
preceding paragraph no quorum can yet be
constituted but the attending shareholders
represent more than one third of the total
number of issued and outstanding shares, a
tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to
Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act of
the Republic of China; all shareholders shall be
notified of the tentative resolution and to attend
another shareholders meeting that shall be

Article 10

If after two postponements the number of shares
represented by the attending sharecholders has
not yet constituted more than one third of the
total number of issued and outstanding shares,
the chairman shall announce the termination of
the meeting .If after two postponements in the
preceding paragraph no quorum can yet be
constituted but the attending shareholders
represent more than one third of the total
number of issued and outstanding shares, a
tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to
Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act of
the Republic of China; all shareholders shall be
notified of the tentative resolution and to attend
another shareholders meeting that shall be
convened within one (1) month.

To comply with
the updated
regulation.
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Before Revision

After Revision

Reason

convened within one (1) month.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting
shareholders intending to attend the meeting
online shall re-register to the Company in
accordance with Article 3.

Where a virtual sharecholders meeting is
convened, sharcholders attending the virtual
meeting online may raise questions in writing at
the virtual meeting platform from the chair
declaring the meeting open until the chair
declaring the meeting adjourned. No more than
two questions for the same proposal may be
raised. Each question shall contain no more than
200 words. The regulations in Article 12 to 14
do not apply.

To comply with
the updated
regulation.

Article 17

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights
by correspondence or electronic means, in the
event the shareholder intends to attend the
shareholders meeting in person, a written
declaration of intent to retract the voting rights
already exercised under the preceding
paragraph shall be made known to the
Company, by the same means by which the
voting rights were exercised, before two (2)
business days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction
is submitted after that time, the voting rights
already exercised by correspondence or
electronic means shall prevail.

When a shareholder has exercised voting rights
both by correspondence or electronic means
and by appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders meeting, the voting rights
exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall
prevail.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting
proposals or elections shall be conducted in
public at the place of the shareholders meeting.
Immediately after vote counting has been
completed, the results of the voting, including
the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes,
shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and
a record made of the vote.

Article 17

After a sharcholder has exercised voting rights
by correspondence or electronic means, in the
event the sharcholder intends to attend the
shareholders meeting in person or online, a
written declaration of intent to retract the voting
rights already exercised under the preceding
paragraph shall be made known to the
Company, by the same means by which the
voting rights were exercised, before two (2)
business days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction
is submitted after that time, the voting rights
already exercised by correspondence or
electronic means shall prevail.

When a shareholder has exercised voting rights
both by correspondence or electronic means
and by appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders meeting, the voting rights
exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall
prevail.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting
proposals or elections shall be conducted in
public at the place of the shareholders meeting.
Immediately after vote counting has been
completed, the results of the voting, including
the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes,
shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and
a record made of the vote.

When the Company convenes a virtual
shareholders meeting, after the chair declares
the meeting open. shareholders attending the
meeting online shall cast votes on proposals and
elections on the virtual meeting platform before
the chair announces the voting session ends or
will be deemed abstained from voting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,
votes shall be counted at once after the chair
announces the voting session ends, and results
of votes and elections shall be announced
immediately.

To comply with
the updated
regulation.
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In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,
the Company shall disclose real-time results of
votes and election immediately after the end of
the voting session on the virtual meeting
platform according to the regulations, and this
disclosure shall continue at least 15 minutes
after the chair has announced the meeting
adjourned.

When the Company convenes a hybrid
shareholders meeting, if shareholders who have
registered to attend the meeting online in
accordance with Article 3 decide to attend the
physical shareholders meeting in person, they

shall revoke their registration two days before

the shareholders meeting in the same manner as
they registered. If their registration is not

revoked within the time limit, they may only
attend the shareholders meeting online.

When shareholders exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronic means, unless
they have withdrawn the declaration of intent
and attended the shareholders meeting online,
except for extraordinary motions, they will not
exercise voting rights on the original proposals

or make any amendments to the original
proposals or exercise voting rights on

amendments to the original proposal.

Article 22

Article 22

On the day of a shareholders meeting, the
Company shall compile in the prescribed format
a statistical statement of the number of shares
obtained by solicitors through solicitation, the
number of shares represented by proxies and the
number of shares represented by shareholders
attending the meeting by correspondence or
electronic means, and shall make an express
disclosure of the same at the place of the
shareholders meeting. In the event a virtual
sharecholders meeting, the Company shall
upload the above meeting materials to the
virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes
before the meeting starts, and keep this
information disclosed until the end of the
meeting.

During the Company's virtual shareholders
meeting, when the meeting is called to order, the
total number of shares represented at the
meeting shall be disclosed on the virtual
meeting platform. The same shall apply
whenever the total number of shares
represented at the meeting and a new tally of
votes is released during the meeting.

To comply with

the

updated

regulation.

(Add)

Article 25

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,
when declaring the meeting open, the chair shall
also declare, unless under a circumstance where
a meeting is not required to be postponed to or
resumed at another time under Article 44-20,
paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the

To comply with

the

updated

regulation.
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Administration of Shareholder Services of
Public Companies, if the virtual meeting
platform or participation in the virtual meeting
is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents
or other force majeure events before the chair
has announced the meeting adjourned, and the
obstruction continues for more than 30 minutes,
the meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on
another date within five days, in which case
Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply.
For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as
described in  the preceding paragraph,
shareholders who have not registered to
participate in the affected shareholders meeting
online shall not attend the postponed or resumed
session.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under
the first paragraph, the number of shares
represented by, and voting rights and election
rights exercised by the shareholders who have
registered to participate in the affected
shareholders meeting and have successfully
signed in the meeting, but do not attend the
postpone or resumed session, at the affected
shareholders meeting, shall be counted towards
the total number of shares, number of voting
rights and number of election rights represented
at the postponed or resumed session.

During a postponed or resumed session of a
shareholders meeting held under the first
paragraph, no further discussion or resolution is
required for proposals for which votes have
been cast and counted and results have been
announced, or list of elected directors and
independent directors.

When the Company convenes a hybrid
shareholders meeting, and the virtual meeting
cannot continue as described in first paragraph,
if the total number of shares represented at the
meeting, after deducting those represented by
shareholders attending the virtual shareholders

meeting online, still meets the minimum legal
requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the

shareholders meeting shall continue, and not
postponement or resumption thereof under the
first paragraph is required.

Under the circumstances where a meeting
should continue as in the preceding paragraph,
the shares represented by shareholders
attending_the virtual meeting online shall be
counted towards the total number of shares
represented by shareholders present at the
meeting, provided these shareholders shall be
deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals
on meeting agenda of that shareholders
meeting.

When postponing or resuming a meeting
according to the first paragraph, the Company
shall handle the preparatory work based on the

date of the original shareholders meeting in
accordance with the requirements listed under
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Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the Regulations
Governing the Administration of Shareholder
Services of Public Companies.

For dates or period set forth under Article 12,
second half, and Article 13, paragraph 3 of
Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for
Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public
Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2,
Article 44-15, and Article 44-17. paragraph 1 of
the Regulations Governing the Administration
of Shareholder Services of Public Companies,
the Company shall handle the matter based on
the date of the shareholders meeting that is
postponed or resumed under the first paragraph.

Article 25
These Rules and Procedures, and any
amendments hereto, shall be effective from the
date it is approved by the shareholders
meetings.

Article 26 Atrticle 25

These Rules and Procedures, and any
amendments hereto, shall be effective from the
date it is approved by the sharecholders
meetings.

The 5th amendment was made on May 31,
2022.

Amending article
number
Correspondence

to

and

the

amendment date.
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